
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 
501 Taft Highway 

Bakersfield, California 
 

TUESDAY, February 7, 2023 
 

AGENDA 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF QUORUM                    12:00PM  
 

CLOSED SESSION: 
 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation – Closed Session Pursuant to Gov. Code § 
54956.9(d)(1): 

1. SWRCB Kern River. 
2. Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District, et al. v. Kern County Water Agency, et al. 

(CVC) 
3. Kern Delta Water District et al. v. Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District et al. (Onyx 

Ranch CEQA). 
4. Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District v. Buena Vista Water Storage District, et al. 

(Onyx Ranch Water Rights). 
5. Bring Back the Kern, et al. v. City of Bakersfield, et al.  

 
B. Conference with Legal Counsel – Potential Litigation – Closed Session Pursuant to Gov. Code § 

54956.9(d)(2),(e)(1): 
1. Two Matters.    

 
C.   Conference with Real Property Negotiators Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.8: 

1. Potential Recharge Property 
  a.  District Negotiator: Steven Teglia  

 
                                                             REGULAR SESSION:                                         
 

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS AND PUBLIC 
 
I. PUBLIC COMMENT (Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on any matter not on the agenda, but absent 

extraordinary circumstances, the Board may not act on such matters.  Members of the public may address items of interest that are listed 
on the agenda prior to the Board’s decision on such items.) 

   
II. MANAGER'S REPORT (The General Manager will discuss, and the Board will consider various items and issues relating 

to the ongoing and future operations of the District which are of interest to the Board) 

A. Approve Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of January 17, 2023. 
 
B. Verbal:  

i. SWP 2023 Allocation – 30%. 
ii. Update Regarding 3rd Party Development Projects and Kern Delta Facilities.  
 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

III.      BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS (This item provides Board Members with an opportunity to make announcements or 
provide general comments.)   

 
IV.  ADJOURN 
 
Requests for disability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or services may be made by telephoning or contacting 
Madelyne Rodriguez at the District Office (661-834-4656).  Please attempt to make such requests known at least 24 hours before the scheduled 
meeting.  Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, any materials relating to an open session item on this agenda, distributed to the Board of 
Directors after the distribution of the agenda packet, will be made available for public inspection at the time of distribution at the District, 501 Taft 
Highway, Bakersfield, CA. 



Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
January 17, 2023 

   
 

TUESDAY, January 17, 2023, 12:00PM– 3:03PM 
 
DIRECTORS PRESENT:  Mendonca, Tillema, Antongiovanni, Spitzer, Fanucchi, Kaiser, and Borba.  
 
DIRECTORS ABSENT:   Palla and Garone.  
 
STAFF PRESENT:  General Manager Teglia, Water Resources Manager Mulkay, Assistant General     

Manager Bellue, General Counsel Iger, Controller Duncan, Hydrographer Hyatt, and 
Groundwater Manager Marquez.  

 
OTHERS PRESENT:  None.      
 
CLOSED SESSION DECLARED AT 12:07PM 
 
Vice President Mendonca called to order the Closed Session of the Kern Delta Board of Directors at 12:00PM 
regarding the following agenda items: 
 
A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation – Closed Session Pursuant to Gov. Code § 
54956.9(d)(1): 
  1.  SWRCB Kern River. 
  2.  Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District, et al. v. Kern County Water Agency, et al. (CVC. 

3.  Kern Delta Water District et al. v. Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District et al. (Onyx Ranch   
CEQA). 

4.  Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District v. Buena Vista Water Storage District, et al. (Onyx 
Ranch Water Rights). 

5.  Bring Back the Kern, et al. v. City of Bakersfield, et al.    
 
B.   Conference with Real Property Negotiators Pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54956.8: 
  1.  Potential Recharge Property 
   a.  District Negotiator: Steven Teglia  
 
C. Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Closed Session Pursuant to Gov. Code § 54957(b)(1)/54957.6. 
  1.  Position: Water Resources Manager   
    
Closed Session concluded at 1:11PM.  
 
REGULAR SESSION DECLARED AT 1:02PM 
 
Vice President Mendonca called to order the Regular Session of the Kern Delta Board of Directors at 1:13PM.   



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
Closed Session Report:  District General Counsel Iger reported the following: 
 
Item A: No reportable action.  
Item B: No reportable action. 
Item C: No reportable action.   
 
INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS AND PUBLIC 
 
None.       
 
I.   PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None. 
 
II.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
M/S/C (Spitzer/Fanucchi) (yes-7, no-0):  By unanimous vote, with Directors Palla and Garone absent, the 
Board approved and authorized items II A through II D of the Consent Calendar.   

 
A. Approval of Minutes from the Regular Board Meeting of December 6, 2022.    
B. Approval of the November/December/January District Construction and Water Banking Project(s) 

Disbursements. 
C. Approval of the November/December/January District Disbursements. 
D. Approval of Resolution 2023-01 – Consent for Temporary Water Service Contract Between the 

United States and Kern Delta Water District (Section 215 Water).    
 
III.  BUSINESS AND FINANCE 
 
A.   Business & Finance Committee Report(s) – December 15, 2022 & January 12, 2023: District Controller 
Duncan provided a report from the December and January Business & Finance Committee Meetings.    
 
A(i).  Approval of November & December 2022 Financial Reports:  Mr. Duncan presented the November & 
December 2022 District and Water Banking Project(s) Financial Statements, Treasurer’s Reports, and 
District Delinquency Report.       
 
M/S/C (Antongiovanni/Tillema (yes-7, no-0):  By unanimous vote, with Directors Palla and Garone absent, 
the Board approved the November and December 2022 District and Water Banking Project(s) Financial 
Statements, Treasurer’s Reports, and Delinquency Report as presented.   
 
A(ii). Quarterly District Investment Update:  Staff provided a brief overview of the District’s current 
investments.  This was an informational item only.    
 
A(iii).  Prepay Policy Discussion:  Staff discussed the issue of accepting prepayments on District accounts 
with the Board.  The Board conveyed their support for creating a policy to allow District acceptance of such 
payments.  Staff was directed to bring a draft policy to the Business and Finance Committee for review and 
ultimate recommendation to the Board.        
 
IV.  OPERATIONS AND PROJECTS 
 
A. - A(i-iv).  Operations and Projects Committee – December 6, 2022 (January 3, 2023 – Canceled): Assistant 
General Manager Bellue briefly reported on several items. Mr. Bellue’s update included District maintenance 



Page 3 of 4 
 

activities, recent encroachment permit requests, pending development projects impacting District facilities, 
and a status update related to the Old River and Sunset Groundwater Banking projects. 
 
B.  Authorization to Purchase a New Sloper Board for the Motor Grader from Quinn Company in an amount 
not to exceed $91,312.53 (Recommended by the Operations and Projects Committee):  Staff discussed the 
necessity to replace the existing sloper board attachment to the motor grader due to recent cumulative failures 
and maintenance costs.  It was stated that the new generation sloper board that will be purchased will have 
better design features allowing for better reach on canal banks than the current attachment.   
  
M/S/C (Spitzer/Borba) (yes-7, no-0):  By unanimous vote, with Directors Palla and Garone absent, the Board 
authorized staff to purchase a new sloper board for the motor grader from Quinn Company, in an amount not 
to exceed $91,312.53.  
 
V.  WATER RESOURCES REPORT 
 
A. - A(i-ii). District Watermaster Report:  Staff reviewed and discussed the water supplies of the District for 
the month of December and early January. Approximately 2061 acre-feet of water was diverted in District 
during December. Staff also provided information related to current precipitation totals and future forecasts.  
It was also stated that the current SWP allocation remained at 5%.     
 
B. - B(i). Kern River Watermaster Report:  The January Kern River Watermaster Report and Isabella 
construction update, provided by the Army Corps of Engineers, was included in the Board packet.   
 
C.   District Groundwater Manager Report:  Groundwater Manager Marquez provided graphical information 
regarding depth to groundwater at various monitoring locations throughout the District.    
 
VI.  MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
A. Mr. Teglia provided a brief verbal report regarding the North West Kern Resource Conservation District 
Mobile Irrigation Lab 2022 Annual Report, which was provided in the Board packet.  In addition, Mr. Teglia 
highlighted work the Administrative and Executive Committee is doing to review a potential pilot program 
for incentivizing well meter utilization and reporting.      
 
B.   External Agency Report: Mr. Teglia provided verbal comments supplementing a memorandum included 
in the Board package which provided information on the meetings and activities of various external agencies.  
These agencies include, but are not limited to, the Kern County Water Agency (including the status of the 
Delta Conveyance Project and Contract Extension), Kern Fan Authority, Kern River Watershed Coalition 
Authority, Kern Groundwater Authority, Kern River Groundwater Sustainability Agency, the South Valley 
Water Resources Authority, the Water Association of Kern County, and the Integrated Regional Water 
Management Plan.  
 
C.   Water Banking Projects Report: Mr. Teglia provided verbal comments supplementing a memorandum 
included in the Board package which provided information on water banking project activity on the Kern 
Fan.  Mr. Teglia also conveyed that based on recent discussions, the District anticipates recovering previously 
banked MWD water and returning regulated water back to MWD in 2023.   
 
VII.  ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
None. 
 
VIII.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 



Page 4 of 4 
 

None. 
 
IX.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business, Vice President Mendonca adjourned the meeting at approximately 3:03PM. 
 
 
 
 
       Respectfully Submitted, 
 

        
       Steven Teglia, General Manager 
Approved by Board, 
 

 
Richard Tillema, Board Secretary 













Received Reviewed EP Board

1 P AEWSD FFP Inter-tie Eastside Canal South of Muller Road - - X - Construction slated for December 2022

2 P AT&T Install fiber crossing Central Branch Canal Panama Lane X X X - Construction TBD

3 P Cal Water Well Purge/Tie-In Multiple Multiple - - - - Reveiewing water quality data

4 P Caltrans Pumpkin Center Multiple Taft Hwy - - - X Grant Deeds reviewed

5 P DeWalt Culvert Extension Kern Island Main Canal South of Hosking X P - X Ongoing

6 P KC Superintendent of Schools Block Wall East Branch Canal Union Ave Staff yet to receive plans

7 P KDWD Grading Old River Basins North of Taft Hwy - - - X Construction underway

8 P KDWD Pumps and pipeline(s) Sunset Basins North of Sunset Blvd X X - X Construction underway

9 P KDWD Wells Old River Basins North of Taft Hwy - - - X Need to selcect consulting engineer

10 P Lane Engineers Culvert Extension Kern Island Main Canal North of Taft Hwy X P - X No update

11 P Lane Engineers Utility crossing Kern Island Main Canal North of Taft Hwy X P X - No update

12 P Laurel Ag New turnout Eastside Canal End of Eastside X P X Under review

13 P LAV // Pinnacle Pipeline & Realignment Branch One Canal South of Taft Hwy - - - X No update

14 P McIntosh & Associates Pipeline & Realignment Section 31 Ditch North of McCutchen X X - X Waitng for new turnout structure

15 P McIntosh & Associates Fencing, Road crossing Burness Ditch North of Taft Hwy X Plans under review

16 P McIntosh & Associates Pipeline & Realignment Branch II Canal North of McKee X P - X Zeiders working with McIntosh

17 P McIntosh & Associates Wrought Irion Fencing Branch One Canal East of Hwy 99 X X X - Waiting for contractor insurance

18 P McIntosh & Associates Pipeline & Realignment Branch II & Stine Canal West of Gosford - - - X No update

19 P Memorial Solar Project Eastside Canal North of 34th Street - - - X No update

20 P Panama Buena Vista USD Pipeline & Realignment Randall Ditch West and East of Gosford Staff met with school district

21 P PG&E Bridge removal Eastside Canal North of 30th Street - - - X Expected to be completed by Feb 8th, 2023

22 P PG&E Undgerounding power, 34th St Multiple 34th Street X X X - No update

23 P WRMWSD/KDWD 5G Tie-In Buena Vista North of S. Lake Rd - - - - On going staff discussions

24 C Cal Water Waterline Kern Island Main Canal N Street X X X - Complete

25 C EDP Renewables Canal Access Rim Ditch Between I-5 and Ashe - - - X Complete

26 C KDWD Traveling Screens Central Branch Canal North of AE Intake Canal - - - X Complete

27 C Murray Family Farms Install sign Rim Ditch North of Rim Ditch X Complete

28 C KDWD Annual Engineering Report N/A N/A - - - - Complete

29 C KDWD 2021 Crop Report N/A N/A - - - - Complete

30 C PG&E Overhead Power Central Branch Canal South of Panama Lane X X X - Complete

31 C Power Plus! Temp Overhead Power Central Branch Canal Central near KD-02 Site X X X - Installed

32 C South Valley Well discharge Kern Island Main Canal South of McKee X X X - Purge well into canal

33 C Swanson Engineers Branch One Easement Branch One Canal Planz Road X X X Quitclaim of old easement needs to be recorded

34 C Cal Water New water line crossing 13 Ditch South of Shafter Rd - - X - Bore completed. Waiting for temp line to be removed

35 C PG&E Overhead Power Stine Canal North of McCutchen X X X Overhead power installed

36 C KHSD Pedestrian path Central Branch Canal North of Panama Lane X X X - Temporary pedestrian path insalled

37 C McIntosh & Associates Culvert Extension Eastside Canal South of Redbank X X - X Culvert Extension completed

38 C Kern Oil Refining Relocate vents Central Branch Canal Panama Lane X X X - Relocation of existing vets 

39 C KDWD Fencing Banking Ponds Romero, KI, B1 Basins - - - X Board approved contract with Lamont Fence

40 C KDWD East Branch Canal Pipeline East Branch Canal South of Casa Loma - - - - Busted pipeline

41 C Watson AG/2B Farming Canal crossing Stine Canal South of Taft Hwy X X X

Comments
Plans Approval Process

Project # Status Organization Project Facility Location

C-Complete

P-Pending

EP-Encroachment Permit

Staff Engineer Project List

2/3/2023 Page 1 of 1


	January 17 2023 Board Meeting Minutes
	02.03.2023.Project.List.Summary



